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          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good morning,

          3  everyone. I'd like to call this meeting of the

          4  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises to order.

          5                 We have a number of items on the

          6  agenda, so we have a busy schedule today.

          7                 First of all, I'd like to announce

          8  that Land Use No. 513, 20055545 TCM, an application

          9  by PM Operating Group, LLC, to establish, maintain

         10  and operate an unenclosed sidewalk cafe located at

         11  50 Gansevoort Street is being withdrawn. We are

         12  expecting a letter from the applicant momentarily.

         13                 Land Use No. 514, 20055515 TCM,

         14  application by 71 Wine Bar Cafe' Operating

         15  Corporation, to establish, maintain and operate an

         16  unenclosed sidewalk cafe located at 237 Columbus

         17  Avenue is also being withdrawn.

         18                 The first items on the agenda today

         19  will be a presentation by Department of City

         20  Planning on Land Use No. 416, C050277 ZMQ, commonly

         21  referred to as the East Flushing rezoning.

         22                 Land Use No. 515, C050289 ZMX,

         23  commonly referred to as the Pelham Gardens

         24  Baychester and Laconia rezoning. And Land Use Nos

         25  516, 517, C050400 ZMQ, commonly referred to as the
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          2  Cambria Heights rezoning, and N050401 ZRY, which is

          3  a text amendment to the zoning resolution, amending

          4  the recently approved R2A zoning designation.

          5                 With that I'd like to call City

          6  Planning, and make the presentation on all three

          7  items.

          8                 While they're getting set up, let me

          9  introduce the members of the Committee that are here

         10  this morning.

         11                 Council Member Melinda Katz, Erik

         12  Dilan, Christine Quinn, Mike McMahon, and also

         13  joining us are Council Member Annabel Palma, who has

         14  an item on the agenda this morning, St. Raymond's

         15  Church outreach, and Minority Leader Jimmy Oddo.

         16                 MR. YOUNG: Good morning, Chair

         17  Avella, Chair Katz, Council members, ladies and

         18  gentlemen, my name is John Young and I'm Director of

         19  the Queens Office of the Department of City

         20  Planning.

         21                 On behalf of City Planning Director

         22  Amanda Burden, I'm very pleased to be here this

         23  morning to present two of the Department's efforts

         24  to comprehensively update zoning designations in two

         25  distinct communities in Queens.
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          2                 I'm joined by Elizabeth Errico, who

          3  will present our Cambria Heights rezoning proposal

          4  to you. For each proposal the Department has

          5  developed a carefully delineated rezoning strategy

          6  that addresses the concerns of residents in these

          7  communities that recent development trends are

          8  undermining their established character, and in

          9  particular, the East Flushing area has had a growth

         10  rate that has outpaced the borough which overall has

         11  been leading the City in shear numbers of new

         12  residents added.

         13                 So, updating the zoning in these

         14  areas which have had the zoning in place for more

         15  than 40 years to achieve orderly growth that

         16  protects the appealing qualities of these

         17  neighborhoods is a priority, and it has been our

         18  privilege to work closely with civic associations in

         19  order to come up with the proposals before you in

         20  both communities.

         21                 In the East Flushing area we have

         22  worked with the Off Broadway Home Owners

         23  Association, the Broadway Flushing Home Owners

         24  Association, and, of course, the East Flushing Civic

         25  Association, and in Cambria Heights we've worked
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          2  very closely and effectively with the Cambria

          3  Heights Civic Association.

          4                 It's taken a considerable amount of

          5  effort and time to reach this point for both of

          6  these rezonings, and we certainly appreciate your

          7  attention as we present them to you.

          8                 I'm going to start with the East

          9  Flushing rezoning. East Flushing rezoning

         10  encompasses more than 100 blocks located about one

         11  mile east of downtown Flushing.

         12                 On the north, the boundaries are

         13  Northern Boulevard and 35th Avenue; on the East,

         14  166th Street; on the South, Labernam and 45th

         15  Avenues; and on the West 156th Street and 149th

         16  Place.

         17                 This area of more than 100 blocks is

         18  currently zoned with a series of zoning designations

         19  that haven't changed since 1961 and they represent a

         20  range of zoning development patterns.

         21                 Above Northern Boulevard is an area

         22  zoned R 2. This is a single-family residence

         23  district, which only allows development of detached

         24  housing for occupants by one household on a minimum

         25  lot with the 40 feet and the minimum lot area of
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          2  3,800 square feet.

          3                 Just to the south of the R2 is the

          4  area's principal zoning district in R 4.

          5                 R4 is a general residence district

          6  and within it there are a range of housing types

          7  that can be allowed. These include single family

          8  detached, also include semi-detached, attached,

          9  garden apartments and multi-family buildings.

         10                 And then in the western area we have

         11  two more general residence districts, R3 2 and R5,

         12  again, they allow a similar range of housing types

         13  and occupants, and in these cases the densities are

         14  really what distinguish these two districts, the R3

         15  2 has a maximum floor area permitted of .6, the R5

         16  has a maximum floor area nearly double that, 1.25.

         17                 And the proposal is going to try to

         18  reflect the development patterns more closely in the

         19  area, and ensure that any new development can

         20  continue to enhance the qualities of the area,

         21  whereas with these zoning districts today we are

         22  observing the subdivision of lots, and a

         23  single-family house being replaced by two houses or

         24  more, and really increasing the density and the

         25  overall development in the area.
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          2                 So, in order to consolidate the

          3  development that's already in the area and ensure

          4  that future development continues to reflect those

          5  patterns, up in the north, above Northern Boulevard

          6  between 35th Avenue and Northern Boulevard, the R 2

          7  district will be replaced by an extension of R1 2

          8  district. The R1 2 district presently comes to 35th

          9  Avenue. The change here will not change the density

         10  of development. It will continue to allow the

         11  maximum .5 FAR, but it would restrict the

         12  development so that the sizes of lots would be

         13  increased and limit development to prevent the

         14  subdivision of the current size of lots here into

         15  smaller lots and occupied by houses that then would

         16  replace a single-family house with two houses. So,

         17  the R1 2 has a minimum lot with 60 feet, a minimum

         18  lot area of 5,700 square feet, which reflects the

         19  predominant development pattern of lots in this

         20  area.

         21                 Then most of the R4 1 districts will

         22  be replaced by a series of zoning designations that

         23  reflect the range of development options that one

         24  can have in the R4 district.

         25                 We have an area where the detached
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          2  quality will be enhanced, south of Sanford Avenue,

          3  and to the east of 162nd Street and north of 43rd

          4  Avenue. This will be rezoned R4A.

          5                 Again, the size of the housing will

          6  not be limited by this change. It continues the

          7  maximum FAR of .9 in the R4, but it will restrict

          8  development to detached housing and limited to

          9  occupancy by no more than two households.

         10                 In most of the areas to the East of

         11  162nd Street to the south of 46th Avenue, and then

         12  to the west of 162nd Street will be changed to an R4

         13  1 district.

         14                 This district allows detached and

         15  semi-detached developments only. These are the types

         16  of housing that predominate in the area. And, again,

         17  the housing can be occupied by no more than two

         18  households.

         19                 And then the central spine of 162nd

         20  Street will be replaced by an R5B district. The R5B

         21  district is a district that allows a range of

         22  developments, but continues to facilitate attached

         23  housing detached, and semi detached at a density

         24  which currently is available in this area under R 4

         25  infill provisions, does a maximum floor ration of
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          2  1.35 and the rezoning will continue to allow the

          3  similar type of development that the R4 infill

          4  allows on this corridor.

          5                 And then areas to the west will also

          6  be changed from their R3 2 designations to R4A and

          7  R4 1 and R4A south of the rail line which bisects

          8  the area. This is the Long Island Railroad, which

          9  has stops here at Murray Hill and the Broadway

         10  Station in this area, and here the zoning changes

         11  will again consolidate the detached and

         12  semi-attached qualities by the R4A and R4 1

         13  designations.

         14                 We are extending an existing R5

         15  district, to join the existing R 5 district that was

         16  at 156th Street, and that will include replacing a

         17  light manufacturing zone, which was retained here,

         18  or designated in 1961, but whose retention no longer

         19  makes sense because those properties are

         20  increasingly shifting to community facility and

         21  other commercial uses. So, we would be also

         22  designating a commercial overlay as part of the

         23  change from M1 to R5 with commercial overlay.

         24                 Lastly, there have been a

         25  considerable amount of discussion about changes on
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          2  the Northern Boulevard and Sanford Avenue Corridors.

          3  These are the major east/west corridors through the

          4  area, and the changes that had been recommended by

          5  the community have been adopted by the Planning

          6  Commission in their modification of the original

          7  proposal, and those designations will be the R5 B

          8  designation on northern and on the portion of

          9  Sanford Avenue that had been formerly proposed for

         10  R6 B.

         11                 In addition, there are six blocks

         12  located between Sanford Avenue and Station Road

         13  where the existing R 4 designation will be retained,

         14  and then there are two and a half blocks north of

         15  the Long Island Railroad tracks and Depot Road where

         16  the existing R 2 designation will be retained.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: For the record,

         18  this application lies within Council Member Liu's

         19  district and my district.

         20                 Most of it is in Council Member Liu's

         21  district, which we're all in favor of, correct? And

         22  as was mentioned, the community boards in favor of

         23  it, the Borough Presidents in favor of it and the

         24  modifications that were suggested have already been

         25  enacted into the plan.
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          2                 I want to thank City Planning and

          3  you, John, and Amanda, for listening to the

          4  community's concerns about the R5B. For the

          5  Committee's information, originally City Planning

          6  was suggesting R6B. The community had a number of

          7  issues with that. We had a meeting in my office with

          8  the Civic Association, and I'm happy that City

          9  Planning went along with the community's

         10  recommendation of doing R5B.

         11                 Any questions from Committee members

         12  on this particular application?

         13                 Thank you, John.

         14                 We'll move on to Cambria Heights.

         15                 MR. YOUNG: Thank you.

         16                 And while Liz is getting set up, I

         17  just want to briefly talk about the text amendment

         18  which is accompanying this proposal.

         19                 The Cambria Heights rezoning embodies

         20  the first community which will receive the City

         21  Planning designation R2A outside of the Bayside

         22  rezoning for which it was originally developed. And

         23  the R2A represents the first contextual zoning

         24  district developed for a single-family resident's

         25  zone.
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          2                 And what it achieved, like all of our

          3  contextual zoning district, is to create an envelope

          4  to ensure that the scale of buildings and the

          5  density of development reflects the predominant

          6  character.

          7                 And we've been working closely,

          8  again, with all of the civic associations that have

          9  been involved with this proposal, and as we've

         10  developed it, we've tried to make sure that we use

         11  the best effort to make this contextual zone

         12  replicate the features of other contextual zones and

         13  the text amendment that's before you is going to

         14  continue those evolutions of the zoning district.

         15  And what it will achieve will be requiring new

         16  development to have a front yard match-up, which

         17  will line the front yards more closely to the

         18  existing patterns. So that instead of providing the

         19  minimum depth of 15 feet, if adjoining development

         20  have deeper yards up to a depth of 20 feet then the

         21  new development will have to match those deeper lots

         22  to ensure that there be a line up of the front walls

         23  of those buildings.

         24                 In addition with all of the R2A

         25  changes, we'll be trying to streamline and make sure
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          2  that there are no exemptions that will continue to

          3  be loopholes that will continue to create the

          4  opportunities for problems with development, and,

          5  again, we're trying to close those, so we're

          6  removing all of the mechanical deductions that

          7  otherwise might create these problems.

          8                 So these two efforts are going to

          9  apply in all the R2A districts where we designate

         10  them.

         11                 So, we really are pleased that this

         12  designation is an effective tool. It's one where

         13  we've received a considerable amount of interest

         14  from civic associations throughout the borough, and

         15  now this is the opportunity for us to utilize it in

         16  a way where there has been a real consistent quality

         17  to the development of Cambria Heights.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Liz, before you

         19  start, I just wanted to mention for the Committee's

         20  information that the changes in the R2A text were

         21  things that came up during the discussion on the

         22  original proposal for Bayside, but we couldn't put

         23  it into the application at that time and City

         24  Planning made a commitment to follow up in the very

         25  next application, which they have done and I
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          2  appreciate that.

          3                 MS. ERRICO: Good morning, Chair

          4  Avella and Chair Katz. The Cambria Heights rezoning

          5  areas located in Eastern Queens, actually separated

          6  from Nassau County, only by the Cross Island

          7  Parkway, the rezoning area itself is bounded by

          8  Murdock Avenue on the north, Springfield Boulevard

          9  and Francis Lewis Boulevard on the west, Montefiore

         10  Cemetery, and 121st Avenue on the south.

         11                 The surrounding communities are

         12  Laurelton to the south, St. Albans to the west, and

         13  Queens Village to the North.

         14                 The rezoning was -- the rezoning

         15  study and the proposals before you were initiated at

         16  the Department at the request of Community Board 13,

         17  the Cambria Heights Civic Association, Councilman

         18  Comrie, and also Assemblywoman Barbara Clarke.

         19                 The requested contextual zoning for

         20  the area, with an eye towards preventing the kind of

         21  overdevelopment that has been occurring in other

         22  parts of Queens.

         23                 The community was beginning to get a

         24  number of redevelopment or work permits in the area.

         25                 Also, the fact that 30 percent of the
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          2  community is zoned for general residence districts,

          3  R3 2 and R4, which encourage multi-family

          4  development in a community that is 97 percent one-

          5  and two-family homes.

          6                 The goals of the study were to

          7  establish zoning districts that would preserve the

          8  character of the neighborhood and closely match

          9  existing building patterns that are there for any

         10  future development.

         11                 What the Department is proposing is

         12  to change the general residence districts, the R3 2,

         13  the R and R 4, to contextual or low-density

         14  districts, and in addition, we would be proposing to

         15  change the R2 to an R2A to establish a more

         16  contextual district for the single-family homes

         17  there.

         18                 In addition, we are proposing some

         19  modifications to the commercial zoning that is

         20  established along Linden Boulevard which is the

         21  commercial corridor for the community.

         22                 First of all, the R3 2 and R4 are

         23  being changed to a number of zones. In the western

         24  section. The proposals are to establish an R3A in

         25  areas along Francis Lewis Boulevard and Springfield

                                                            17

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  Boulevard where the development is detached one- and

          3  two-family homes on narrow lots.

          4                 We are also proposing to establish R3

          5  1 in sections of the neighborhood that are

          6  predominantly developed with a detached -- sorry --

          7  semi-detached homes, one- and two-family homes.

          8  These along the Springfield Boulevard corridor, and

          9  in other sections, the northern section of the

         10  community we're proposing R4B, which reflects the

         11  prototypical development there which is one- and

         12  two-family row houses, which have no front yard

         13  parking. All of that parking is in the rear of, the

         14  rear of the development.

         15                 Along Linden Boulevard, we are

         16  proposing two actions to modify the commercial

         17  districts; one by changing the existing C2 2 and C1

         18  2 zoning to C1 3 and C2 3. What this will do is to

         19  reduce the required parking on these lots if there

         20  is any redevelopment.

         21                 The lots along Linden Boulevard are

         22  predominantly shallow lots, and this will

         23  accommodate new commercial development without

         24  requiring an exorbitant number of parking spaces.

         25                 In addition, we are removing the
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          2  overlays from certain block fronts to block fronts

          3  that are residentially developed, and reducing the

          4  depth of the commercial overlays from 150 to 100

          5  feet.

          6                 What this does is also eliminate the

          7  commercial overlays along the side streets and

          8  prevents intrusion of commercial uses on the

          9  residential side streets.

         10                 In addition, the R2 is being

         11  proposed, which the R2 area covers 70 percent of the

         12  community, is being proposed to be changed to R2A to

         13  very closely reflect the existing single-family

         14  development that is there.

         15                 In summary what we are proposing our

         16  contextual and lower density districts that more

         17  accurately reflect the existing development there,

         18  and that will in the future prevent any new

         19  development from being out of scale and out of

         20  character with what exists there now.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: As you mentioned,

         22  Council Member Leroy Comrie is very strongly in

         23  favor of this. We actually have a letter of support

         24  that will be submitted into the record.

         25                 Any comments, questions from
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          2  Committee members in relation to this application?

          3                 Council Member Oddo.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Just a question

          5  out of curiosity, considering what we're doing on

          6  Staten Island in the commercial zone.

          7                 Has there been any residential

          8  development along that commercial strip that you're

          9  rezoning at this point?

         10                 MR. YOUNG: There hasn't been

         11  residential development. We are actually trying to

         12  reflect whether the existing residential development

         13  and no commercial development are removing the

         14  overlays from the extending deeper into the lots and

         15  a couple of block fronts.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay, thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: No other

         18  questions? Thank you.

         19                 We'll move on to the Bronx portion of

         20  City Planning's presentation.

         21                 This application is in Council Member

         22  Provenzano's district and she is also very much in

         23  favor of the application.

         24                 MS. KAPUR: I'm sorry. It's also in

         25  Council Member Larry Seabrook's district.
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          2                 Good morning, Chair Avella, Chair

          3  Katz, and members of the Subcommittee. My name is

          4  Purnima Kapur. I am the Director of the Bronx Office

          5  of City Planning.

          6                 With me is Jose Lopez, our planner

          7  for Community District 11, which the rezoning area

          8  is largely in Community District 11.

          9                 It gives me great pleasure today to

         10  come here to present to you the Department's Pelham

         11  Gardens rezoning, which encompasses the

         12  neighborhood's Othelo Gardens, Laconia, and portions

         13  of Baychester and spans two community districts,

         14  Community District 11 and 12 in the Bronx. It also

         15  is in two Councilmanic Districts, those of

         16  Councilwoman Provenzano and Councilman Seabrook.

         17                 This is another rezoning in our

         18  continuing strategy of trying to address issues of

         19  neighborhood preservation and neighborhood growth in

         20  a manner that reflects the existing pattern of

         21  development in these neighborhoods and preserves

         22  what really makes these neighborhoods attractive to

         23  the people who live here.

         24                 This rezoning, just to orient you, is

         25  on the north of Pelham Parkway, New York Botanical
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          2  Garden is to the south and west of it, Pelham Bay

          3  Park is to the south and east of it, Fordham

          4  University area would be to the northwest.

          5                 The rezoning encompasses

          6  approximately 163 blocks in these two zone community

          7  boards, 11 and 12 in the Bronx.

          8                 The issues here that we were trying

          9  to address was the mismatch of the existing zoning

         10  with what is actually built in these neighborhoods.

         11  Most of the zoning here goes back to 1961,

         12  broadbrush zoning that was done in these

         13  neighborhoods.

         14                 The neighborhoods are fairly mixed in

         15  character. This is not one of the areas where we

         16  had, you know, one kind of housing.

         17                 However, there was a clear mismatch

         18  between the zoning and what was actually existing in

         19  these neighborhoods.

         20                 And our strategy here was really to

         21  start looking at these areas afresh.

         22                 It's not a straightforward going from

         23  sort of general housing district to housing

         24  districts that would only permit attached and

         25  detached. In some cases we actually had to go from
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          2  lower general housing district to a higher

          3  contextual district to reflect what was there.

          4                 We looked at the underlying floor

          5  area, the building types and the attempt really was

          6  to try to make sure that the new growth in these

          7  areas would be reflective of what is underneath.

          8                 There is a mix of general housing

          9  districts for the most part, R3 2 and R4, which

         10  would allow a whole range of housing, and Jose will

         11  go into the proposal as you will see, which is a

         12  much more fine-grained proposal reflecting the

         13  underlying building --

         14                 MR. LOPEZ: Good morning, everyone. As

         15  my Director mentioned, this is a well fine-grained

         16  proposal. As you can see, on the map the yellow

         17  represents detached building type, and the orange

         18  represents semi-detached --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I think you

         20  failed to introduce yourself. Because, remember,

         21  this is being recorded, so...

         22                 MR. LOPEZ: My name is Jose Lopez, and

         23  I'm with the Department of City Planning. I work in

         24  the Bronx Office.

         25                 As I was mentioning, on the map the
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          2  dark brown represents attached and the other is

          3  family.

          4                 We basically studied a larger area.

          5  As you can see some of the lines, we have to do a

          6  well-fine-grained proposal. We're proposing on the

          7  southeast corner to rezone all portions of 19 blocks

          8  from existing R3-2 District, which allowed all types

          9  of building, detached, semi-detached and attached

         10  buildings. And the R3 has an FAR of .6. The R3 will

         11  still have an FAR .6, will permit one- and

         12  two-family detached homes, will be in larger lots,

         13  which is reflected in this area.

         14                 As you can see it's all pretty much

         15  brown and yellow which is detached.

         16                 We're also proposing to rezone whole

         17  portions of 36 blocks, which encompasses two areas,

         18  here to the west, from R3-2 and R4 to R4A. R4A will

         19  permit one- and two-family detached homes on larger

         20  lots also.

         21                 Also proposing to rezone all portions

         22  of 96 blocks from an R3 to R4 and R5 to R4-1.

         23  Especially this area here that goes from the south

         24  all the way up, and encompasses both community

         25  district 11 and 12. They will be rezoned to an R4-1,
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          2  which will permit one- and two-family detached and

          3  semi-detached with an FAR .9.

          4                 We're also proposing to, a slight

          5  upzoning, an area that is east and west of the No. 5

          6  train station from an R4 and R5, C2-1 commercial

          7  overlay to an R6B with a C1 -- C2-3 commercial

          8  overlay.

          9                 This area is developed with one-story

         10  taxpayers, and the proposed R6B would allow

         11  one-story commercial, and two- and three-story

         12  residential, and this area is well-served by mass

         13  transit.

         14                 MS. KAPUR: Let me also say that both

         15  the community districts, the Borough President, as

         16  well as the Borough Board have voted to approve this

         17  application.

         18                 We have also presented this

         19  application to both the Council members and both

         20  expressed support.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         22                 Any questions from Committee members?

         23  Council members?

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 MR. LOPEZ: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: What I will do is

          3  in the order that they were presented I will take

          4  the public hearing on these three items.

          5                 The first item was East Flushing

          6  rezoning. I have nobody signed up to speak in front

          7  of me.

          8                 Is there anybody in the audience who

          9  wants to speak on this item?

         10                 Okay, I will close the public hearing

         11  on East Flushing rezoning.

         12                 The next rezoning proposal that was

         13  discussed was Cambria Heights.

         14                 I have two speakers, Richard

         15  Hellenbrecht, and Kevin, is it Turmot?

         16                 MR. JEMMOTT: Jemmott.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Jemmott.

         18                 Gentlemen.

         19                 MR. HELLENBRECHT: Good morning, Chair

         20  Avella, Chair Katz, members of the Committee.

         21                 Thank you very much for hearing us.

         22  I'm here as Richard Hellenbrecht, Chair of Community

         23  Board 13. I'm pleased to say that we've been closely

         24  involved in this study right from the very first

         25  meetings on it and support this application
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          2  tremendously all the way through. Well aware of

          3  Councilman Comrie's involvement and support of this

          4  as well.

          5                 Cambria Heights is a gorgeous

          6  tree-lined community of one-family houses. It is

          7  prime for overdevelopment at this time, the way

          8  things are going in Queens. I'm very pleased that

          9  Kevin Jemmott and the Civic Association Cambria

         10  Heights has gotten on top of this issue very

         11  quickly. And the City Council has come to the fore

         12  and the City Planning Commission has worked very

         13  hard to come up with a proposal that as you've seen

         14  is really surgical, it's an approach, it's

         15  identified the best possible zones for every one of

         16  the conditions out there, and I think to adopt this

         17  as it is will solidify the neighborhood, will keep

         18  permanent and reduce any opportunity for

         19  overdevelopment, yet keep the community in its

         20  beautiful shape that it is.

         21                 So, I'd like to thank again the City

         22  Planning Commission for doing an excellent job and

         23  I'd like to thank your committee and hope that you

         24  will expeditiously approve it.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 MR. JEMMOTT: Good morning, Chair

          3  Avella, Chair Katz and Council members.

          4                 My name is Kevin Jemmott. I'm the

          5  President of the Cambria Heights Civic Association,

          6  and I'm joined here with members of the Cambria

          7  Heights community, seated to the rear right, and

          8  we're pleased to see that this rezoning proposal has

          9  quickly reached each stage. The community had

         10  approached the civic association because they had

         11  fears that the community would become overdeveloped

         12  as we had witnessed in neighboring communities.

         13                 We quickly met, we downzoned maps,

         14  and we realized that Cambria Heights was primed for

         15  overdevelopment. We met with Councilman Leroy

         16  Comrie, Assemblywoman Barbara Clarke, Liz Errico

         17  and, of course, Richard Hellenbrecht, to come up

         18  with a plan to rezone Cambria Heights.

         19                 We realized that it was going to be a

         20  long process, so we invited the Mayor to come to our

         21  civic meeting in November, and at that meeting close

         22  to 800 community members came out to urge the Mayor

         23  to make this process happen expeditiously, and he

         24  challenged the City Planning to make this move

         25  happen as quickly as possible.
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          2                 They formed the Cambria Heights

          3  Rezoning Committee, and they worked very closely

          4  with the community to come up with the current

          5  rezoning proposal.

          6                 Once we came up with the proposal, we

          7  published the old rezoning and the new rezoning in a

          8  newsletter and distributed it to over 1,400 people.

          9  We posted the rezoning in the post office and also

         10  on our website at Towns United.org.

         11                 We then had City Planning come to our

         12  civic meeting and we dedicated the entire meeting to

         13  a Q and A as to exactly what the rezoning proposal

         14  was, and miraculously the entire community approved

         15  it. And it just rolled on from there. Here we are

         16  today. We just urge you to encourage the City

         17  Council to approve the rezoning of Cambria Heights.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. And

         20  thank you for all of the work that you did on this.

         21                 Any questions from the Committee

         22  members? Council members? Thank you.

         23                 There is no one else signed up to

         24  speak on the Cambria Heights rezoning. I will close

         25  the public hearing on that item.
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          2                 I also have no one signed up to speak

          3  on Pelham Gardens, Baychester, Laconia rezoning. If

          4  there's no one who wants to speak on this item, I

          5  will close the public hearing on that item as well.

          6                 And we have two remaining items on

          7  the agenda. First let me say that Land Use No. 512,

          8  20055633 TCQ, which was an application by YNLC Cafe'

          9  Corporation, to establish, maintain and operate an

         10  unenclosed sidewalk cafe located at 35, 27 30th

         11  Avenue, there was some discussion with the applicant

         12  and Council Member Peter Vallone's staff out in the

         13  hallway, while we were reviewing the other items. I

         14  understand that item is now being withdrawn.

         15                 So, let's move on Land Use No. 415,

         16  C010703 ZMX, application submitted by St. Raymond

         17  community outreach, eliminating a special plan

         18  community preservation district, bounded by a line

         19  passing through three points, one at the

         20  intersection of the centerlines of Parker Street and

         21  other streets.  And I'd like to call the applicant

         22  up. And as I mentioned before, this lies within

         23  Council Member Palma's district.

         24                 MS. ROSENTHAL: Good morning. Sounds

         25  better. Good morning, Council Member Avella, Council
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          2  Member Katz, and the other Committee members that

          3  are here. I'm Carol Rosenthal, from Monatt Phelps

          4  and Phillips.

          5                 I'm here this morning to represent

          6  St. Raymond's Community Outreach, who is the

          7  applicant for this rezoning application.

          8                 Joining me here today is Vivian

          9  Becker, the Executive Director, of St. Raymond's,

         10  Karen Fairbanks of Marble Fairbanks, the architect

         11  for the project, and Chuck Tucci of the Parkchester

         12  Preservation Company, which is collaborating with

         13  St. Raymond's community outreach on the project.

         14                 St. Raymond's Community Outreach is a

         15  community-based organization founded to serve the

         16  Parkchester section of the East Bronx.

         17                 They have a number of comprehensive

         18  after school programs serving ten of the area's

         19  schools and a range of services for adults.

         20                 St. Raymond's owns the site, thanks

         21  to a donation from the Parkchester Preservation

         22  Corporation on Purdy Street, just east of the

         23  Parkchester complex near Metropolitan Avenue,

         24  located there.

         25                 Let's look at the second board, too.
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          2  I just want to locate it for the Council members.

          3                 It's also located near a number of

          4  schools, St. Raymond's school is in purple below.

          5  There's a couple of public schools in the area, and

          6  it's right at the outskirts of the Parkchester

          7  complex.

          8                 Currently on the site there's a

          9  five-story garage building that has been vacant and

         10  abandoned for over a decade.

         11                 The site is also at the edge of the

         12  planned community preservation district.

         13                 What St. Raymond's would like to do

         14  on the site is to build a three-story community

         15  center, which is shorter than the existing building,

         16  has less square footage, and is a welcome addition

         17  to the area.

         18                 The rezoning would remove the

         19  boundary line of the special district, and the

         20  underlying zoning, which is an R6 with a C22

         21  overlay, would remain the same on the site.

         22                 The removal of this special permit

         23  from this particular area would enable the site to

         24  go forward without having to do a study of the

         25  entire Parkchester complex, and it would facilitate
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          2  the demolition of the garage and the construction of

          3  the community facility.

          4                 The architect who is here will

          5  discuss the plans in more detail, and Vivian will

          6  discuss the proposal for the programming for the

          7  site. And I just want to close by saying that the

          8  community board voted in favor of the application,

          9  as did the Borough President and the City Planning

         10  Commission.

         11                 We very much appreciate your time

         12  this Monday morning in the summer, and your

         13  consideration with respect to this matter.

         14                 I'm going to turn it over now to

         15  Karen to talk about some of those specific plans.

         16                 MS. FAIRBANKS: Hi. Good morning. I'm

         17  Karen Fairbanks, of Marble Fairbanks Architects, the

         18  architect for this proposal. And very pleased to be

         19  part of this team, bringing an important project to

         20  this area.

         21                 We're very aware of the history of

         22  Parkchester and the important role it's played in

         23  housing in New York City. The drawings I'll show you

         24  demonstrate our approach to the site and the program

         25  at this point.
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          2                 This is a site plan, it shows the

          3  project is sited along the length of Purdy Street.

          4  We think our primary entrance will be on that

          5  street, which will intend to activate the street,

          6  activate the kind of urban life of this area.

          7                 This is Purdy Street. Carol will

          8  point out where our building is, relative to Purdy

          9  Street.

         10                 And you're seeing the existing

         11  housing. Is she doing a good job? The existing --

         12  it's a routine we've worked on -- the existing

         13  building behind is eight to nine stories, our

         14  building is three stories. We intend to integrate

         15  the landscape of our space into the landscape of

         16  Parkchester housing beyond, but the building has to

         17  negotiate a sight. We're on the edge of Parkchester

         18  and on the edge of the extended neighborhood, and we

         19  intend to address that in making our primary

         20  entrance off of Parkchester -- off of Purdy Street.

         21                 The second board. I don't think we

         22  need to point here. The second board shows the entry

         23  off of Purdy Street. It demonstrates that you can

         24  barely see the housing behind the building. We're on

         25  Purdy Street looking toward the housing, but the
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          2  housing behind is eight stories and our building is

          3  three.

          4                 It shows that even though the project

          5  is part of the -- the existing buildings are

          6  housing, our project is a community center, and will

          7  therefore have an architectural expression somewhat

          8  different from the housing, but acknowledging the

          9  existing palate of materials in the neighborhood.

         10  We're showing a building that's primarily glass and

         11  tile. It's about three stories tall, it's three

         12  stories tall right now, about 41 feet. The left side

         13  is the gym, and the right side are a series of

         14  programs, including children's programming,

         15  community spaces and administration.

         16                 And I think that to end I think we'll

         17  say we're looking for a building that's very

         18  transparent that reveals the interior programs to

         19  the street and activates the street in that way.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 MS. BECKER: Thank you. And I want to

         22  thank our Councilwoman Annabel Palma for her

         23  tremendous support of this project.

         24  I'm Vivian Becker. I'm the Executive Director, and

         25  our program will be very much what you would expect
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          2  in a community center, a mix of education and

          3  recreation programs that will serve primarily the

          4  pedestrian Parkchester community, comprised of

          5  approximately 40,000 residents and 12,000 some odd

          6  children. The immediate Castle Hill area around

          7  Parkchester, as well.

          8                 We're currently, we're a relatively

          9  young organization. We were started in 1999,

         10  primarily to develop and build a community center,

         11  and we started with what is our core program to

         12  date, a comprehensive after school program, and that

         13  serves elementary, middle and high school students.

         14  We're very much in need of additional space, which

         15  is well -- our programs are well timed to expand

         16  into the community center.

         17                 We have a program current for a range

         18  of services that we partner with other agencies to

         19  provide to adults, and when we move into the

         20  community center we will have a range of

         21  state-of-the-art fitness center, which will be

         22  primarily family-oriented fitness center, a gym,

         23  expanded after school program, child care center,

         24  facilitating services for adults and for older

         25  adults.
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          2                 We'll have an array of classes that

          3  support the need of the community as well.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 MS. ROSENTHAL: That concludes the

          6  formal part of our presentation, but we're happy to

          7  address any questions that the Council members may

          8  have.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: First I'd like to

         10  call on Council Member Palma.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chair.

         13                 I wanted to express to the Committee

         14  members my support for this project.

         15                 I was elected and after met with

         16  Vivian and Chuck Tucci and the representatives from

         17  Parkchester, that this is a great idea, great

         18  project that, in my opinion, is well overdue. It's

         19  going to, like Vivian mentioned, service thousands

         20  and thousands of families in the Parkchester area.

         21  Right now they don't have a centralized place like

         22  this that they can go to for services. The program

         23  that Vivian runs is a great program in a very small

         24  tiny little place and I believe that this is going

         25  to alleviate a lot of the stress of not being able
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          2  to accept more children into after school programs,

          3  other services that they are already providing, and

          4  I encourage you to vote yes for this and it

          5  definitely will benefit the community.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 MS. ROSENTHAL: Anything else? If

          8  there are no further questions, we'll sit down.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other further

         10  questions from Committee members?

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 MS. ROSENTHAL: Thank you very much.

         13                 MS. FAIRBANKS: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I do not have

         15  anybody signed up to speak on this item, so unless

         16  there is somebody in the audience who wants to

         17  speak, I will close the public hearing on this item.

         18                 What I'd like to do is at this point

         19  ask Counsel to call the vote on the items we've

         20  heard thus far.

         21                 Chair recommends approval of the

         22  three rezoning actions, St. Raymond's and the three

         23  sidewalk cafes are all being withdrawn.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Avella.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          3  Quinn.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Before voting,

          5  I want to thank Pete Janosik for his help on the

          6  sidewalk cafe issue that was withdrawn today and I

          7  vote aye on all.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          9  Dilan.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye on all.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Councilman

         12  McMahon.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye on all.

         14                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         15  Katz.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye on all.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         18  at five in the affirmative, none in the negative and

         19  no abstentions and referred to the full Land Use

         20  Committee.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Now, tomorrow

         22  morning, we're going to go onto the last item right

         23  now but tomorrow morning the Subcommittee will have

         24  to meet two minutes before the main Land Use

         25  Committee.
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          2                 The Administration is going to be

          3  submitting a bus extender again. A bus extender, a

          4  bus franchise extender. They weren't able to get it

          5  to us for this Committee meeting, but they will be

          6  able to get it to us before the main Land Use

          7  Committee meeting.

          8                 So, we will schedule, we will meet 15

          9  minutes, 9:45, before the 10:00 Land Use Committee

         10  meeting, which we will vote on that, and then we

         11  will take a vote on the next Land Use item.

         12                 So, now we will move on to Land Use

         13  No. 416. I'm sorry, 460, 461 and 510. C050014 ZMR;

         14  C050143 ZMR; and C050015 ZMR; all rezonings in the

         15  Council Member Andrew Lanza's district, and all

         16  three applications have been initiated by the

         17  Council member.

         18                 Unfortunately, he is on vacation, so

         19  he has asked one of his staff members to give the

         20  report on the application. He actually told me it's

         21  the first vacation he's taken since he was elected.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Mr. Chairman,

         23  can I ask a question? Is City Planning coming to

         24  make a presentation?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: No. It is
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          2  actually because the applications were initiated by

          3  Council Member Lanza. He's the applicant, not City

          4  Planning in this case.

          5                 MR. ZABLOCKI: Good morning. My name

          6  is Alex Zablocki, and I'm representing Councilman

          7  Andrew Lanza today.

          8                 Councilman Lanza has three rezoning

          9  applications before you today. The first one is

         10  C050014 ZMR, that's the Tottenville rezoning. I

         11  handed out maps.

         12                 This rezoning is proposed to go from

         13  R3A, which is detached houses on 35 foot lot widths,

         14  to R3X and R1 2. It encompasses about 90 blocks and

         15  approximately 2,500 lots.

         16                 Most of the housing stock currently

         17  in Tottenville is houses dating back to the 19th

         18  Century, early 20th Century, it's an older

         19  established neighborhood, which has seen the change

         20  recently because of sewer lines coming in and these

         21  rezonings are to hopefully protect the established

         22  character of these communities.

         23                 For the record, the compliance on all

         24  these rezonings are about 80 percent or higher.

         25                 The next rezoning is Eltingville
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          2  rezoning, C050015 ZMR, currently zoned R3A, which,

          3  again, 35-foot lot with detached houses. It's

          4  proposed to go to R1 2, which is in the South

          5  Richmond District, is 40-foot lot widths and 5,700

          6  square feet of area one-family only.

          7                 And finally, in the Greykills in

          8  Tottenville waterfront area, currently the zone is

          9  C3, that allows commercial uses as well as R3 2

         10  equivalent underneath for residential use. We

         11  proposing to rezone that to C3A, approximately 18

         12  blocks, R3 1, which will be approximately two

         13  blocks, and R3 2, which is approximately four blocks

         14  at rezoning area.

         15                 C3A was created in the Throggsneck

         16  section of the Bronx, September of 2004, and this is

         17  the first time it's being used on Staten Island.

         18                 The biggest threat to the quality of

         19  life on Staten Island is overdevelopment, so these

         20  rezonings are meant to protect the character of the

         21  community and ensure that future development is in

         22  character with future development.

         23                 These are supported by Community

         24  Board 3 and, of course, Councilman Lanza.

         25                 The Tottenville rezoning is, of
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          2  course supported by the Tottenville Civic

          3  Association, and the Tottenville Historical Society,

          4  he Eltingville rezoning is supported by the

          5  Eltingville Civic Association and the Greykills

          6  Harbor and Tottenville waterfront rezoning is

          7  supported by the Tottenville Civic Association and

          8  the Crescent Beach Civic Association.

          9                 That's all I have. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm looking at

         11  the record of the community board, and am I correct

         12  in that the community board approved all three

         13  applications by unanimous vote?

         14                 MR. ZABLOCKI: Correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions

         16  from Committee members?

         17                 We do have two speakers signed up in

         18  opposition.

         19                 Thank you. If you would sort of hang

         20  around. I know you will. Just in case some questions

         21  come up. Thanks.

         22                 We have two people signed up in

         23  opposition, Richard Emery and Mark Levine.

         24                 Good morning, Chair Avella and Chair

         25  Katz, who I guess is no longer here.
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          2                 My name is Richard Emery. I'm an

          3  attorney with Emery Celli Brinckerhoff and Abady,

          4  and I'm here today representing the Building

          5  Industry Association of New York City, to the extent

          6  that there is opposition, voicing opposition to

          7  these three zoning proposals, as well as four which

          8  are going to subsequently come before this

          9  Committee, also sponsored by Councilperson Lanza.

         10                 I want to take one point of personal

         11  privilege first and say, first of all, thank you

         12  very much, Chair Avella, for inviting this

         13  testimony. I enjoyed very much testifying before the

         14  City Council on Land Use matters, particularly

         15  because I was the lawyer who had a good deal to do

         16  with giving this Committee and the Council power

         17  over these matters when I litigated the Board of

         18  Estimate case in 1989 and eliminated the Board of

         19  Estimate and was involved in the subsequent Charter

         20  Revision Commission, which gave this Committee its

         21  power and the Council to take these actions and

         22  exercise its discretion in the context of Land Use

         23  which was previously, as you know, in the Board of

         24  Estimate.

         25                 So, I appreciate very much being here
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          2  and playing a role in this process.

          3                 We are here today to oppose these

          4  three and four that will come on several bases, but

          5  the thrust of it is that we believe they're legally

          6  deficient in at least two respects. The substantive

          7  point is that they're legally deficient in that we

          8  believe they violate the federal fair housing act,

          9  and the technical point and the procedural point is

         10  we believe that they violate the rules of the

         11  Charter, in that Councilman Lanza does not have

         12  standing and is not an appropriate sponsor of these

         13  proposals. In fact, the Charter makes it pretty

         14  clear in our view that there's a conflict of

         15  interest with a single Councilperson supporting a

         16  zoning amendment, that single Councilpeople are in a

         17  conflict situation because when they support a

         18  zoning amendment, they are then in the position of

         19  having to vote on it subsequently and assess it.

         20                 The substance of our point, though,

         21  is that we are not against good planning in Staten

         22  Island. I want to be very clear about that at the

         23  outset. Good planning in Staten Island is a

         24  necessity, especially in Staten Island but as it is

         25  throughout the rest of the City because Staten
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          2  Island is in the process of overdevelopment, and is

          3  in the process of terrible problems with traffic,

          4  with lack of resources, with lack of transportation

          5  resources, with overcrowding and with building

          6  problems that need to be addressed.

          7                 However, we believe they cannot be

          8  addressed in the heavy-handed way that these

          9  proposals attempt to address them.

         10                 We believe that they cannot be

         11  addressed without looking at several less intrusive

         12  and less discriminatory, if you will, less

         13  discriminatory mechanisms, for addressing these

         14  proposals.

         15                 I want to confine my remarks today to

         16  three points. First of all, that Councilman Lanza's

         17  proposals do suffer from this conflict of interest.

         18                 Secondly, that in their current form

         19  they violate the Fair Housing Act.

         20                 Thirdly, that proper development in

         21  Staten Island requires the careful, thoughtful

         22  planning that balances the rights of minorities who

         23  want to move to Staten Island, and the rights of

         24  people who want to move to Staten Island who could

         25  not afford it under these zoning proposals.
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          2                 First of all, just briefly on the

          3  point of conflict of interest. If you look at

          4  Section 201 of the City Charter, it specifies who

          5  can support a proposal for a zoning amendment.

          6                 It's very clear that a Councilperson

          7  is not among the groups. And the two-thirds of the

          8  Land Use Committee can do it on the Council, but

          9  that is the only role of the Council insofar as

         10  proposing Land Use, zoning amendments.

         11                 Therefore, this amendment, in my view

         12  as a technical matter, has to be withdrawn and

         13  someone else has to support it. Councilman Lanza

         14  cannot do so as a legal proposition, and quite

         15  frankly, I think it will be in any litigation which

         16  may or may not ensue on these issues, will be the

         17  first point that will be made about the technical

         18  deficiency of this proposal.

         19                 But more to the point, the Fair

         20  Housing, federal Fair Housing Act is the thrust of

         21  the argument here. It's extremely important for the

         22  members of this Council to understand that the

         23  federal Fair Housing Act is not an intent statute.

         24  In other words, people who were challenging these

         25  zoning proposals do not have to prove that there was
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          2  any discriminatory intent whatsoever, and we do not

          3  allege here today that there was any discriminatory

          4  intent in these zoning proposals as to keep out

          5  minorities or maintain a segregated Staten Island.

          6                 The fact of the matter is that in the

          7  areas of these zoning proposals, the population is

          8  90 percent white, and the federal Fair Housing Act

          9  makes it clear that the effect of a zoning proposal

         10  is the manner in which the civil rights of those

         11  affected will be assessed.

         12                 In other words, if this zoning

         13  proposal results in effect without any intent in

         14  discriminating against minorities access to

         15  affordable housing in these areas disproportionately

         16  as compared to whites, then we have a Fair Housing

         17  Act violation at least on the surface. Good planning

         18  can be a justification.

         19                 But then the third tier of analysis

         20  is that these zoning proposals have to be the least

         21  intrusive method of achieving that good planning.

         22                 And what we are saying is there are

         23  clearly good planning motivations behind many of

         24  these, behind these zoning proposals, but they are

         25  not the least intrusive a way of accomplishing that
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          2  good planning, first of all, and second of all,

          3  there has to be some commensurate upzoning or nearby

          4  in the same communities, some commensurate

          5  opportunities that are demonstrable for minorities

          6  to have access to affordable housing in order for

          7  these zoning proposals to be valid.

          8                 Now, that's an extremely important

          9  point, and it's a point that no one in these

         10  proposals has assessed. Not the community board, not

         11  the borough president, not the City Planning

         12  Commission, and now it's before the Council. None of

         13  the groups that these proposals have been before

         14  have assessed the issue of the effect on minority of

         15  these zoning proposals.

         16                 Obviously, the Council has to take

         17  responsibility for that as the final arbiter with

         18  the Mayor, of whether these zoning proposals will

         19  pass, and what we're saying here today is, at a

         20  minimum these should be turned down for the time

         21  being so that we go back and take a good look at the

         22  effect on minorities of these zoning proposals,

         23  minority affordable housing opportunities in these

         24  districts, okay?

         25                 So, the essence of our point is here,
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          2  and the statistics of our demographers show it, is

          3  that these zoning proposals will cut availability of

          4  housing for 88 percent of blacks, for 71 percent of

          5  Hispanics, and for 49.4 percent of whites. As you

          6  can see, there's a dramatic discrimination in the

          7  effect of these amendments. And that is the basis

          8  for a Fair Housing Act claim, and we would urge you

          9  to take a very close look at this before these

         10  proposals are approved.

         11                 Finally, I'll be done in a second,

         12  Chair Avella.

         13                 Finally, I just want to be clear that

         14  we are in favor of smart development on Staten

         15  Island and everywhere else. These proposals are very

         16  different from the downzonings that are occurring

         17  throughout New York City. They are different because

         18  Staten Island and the South end where these are

         19  proposed is homogeneously, virtually homogeneously

         20  white, and therefore, we need to take a much closer

         21  look at this before they are approved.

         22                 We have copies of our testimony, and

         23  a legal memorandum which is available for anyone who

         24  would like to see it here for everyone in this

         25  Committee, and I'll be glad to pass them out, if I
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          2  may?

          3                 Thank you very, very much for this

          4  opportunity.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: A number of my

          6  colleagues, before we get on to the next speaker,

          7  have questions.

          8                 First of all, by coincidence, today

          9  we had three rezonings, downzonings, contextual

         10  zonings, Cambria Heights, East Flushing, Pelham

         11  Gardens, all racially and ethnically diverse

         12  communities.

         13                 MR. EMERY: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: So, how would you

         15  comment on that based upon the argument you just

         16  made?

         17                 MR. EMERY: You made the point exactly

         18  in your question. These are racially and ethnically

         19  diverse communities. The affect on these communities

         20  of the downzoning would be extremely hard from a

         21  Fair Housing Act point of view to demonstrate. Where

         22  you have a 90 percent white downzoning with no

         23  commensurate upzoning, with no other commensurate

         24  income opportunities in the immediate area, it's an

         25  extremely different situation than the downzonings
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          2  that I listened to as I was sitting here.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Are you making

          4  the argument that, in other words, in a white

          5  community you cannot have a downzoning without an

          6  upzoning?

          7                 MR. EMERY: No.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: So, if you're

          9  talking about proper planning, you're saying,

         10  disregard planning, you can't have a downzoning in a

         11  white community without an upzoning. So, how is that

         12  proper planning?

         13                 MR. EMERY: There are many ways to do

         14  proper planning other than pure zoning, downzoning.

         15  To preserve the character and integrity of a

         16  neighborhood.

         17                 Those are the classic phrases that

         18  come up in the Fair Housing Act cases, as the basis

         19  for what is subsequently ruled to be in violation of

         20  the Fair Housing Act.

         21                 This is the language of preserving

         22  communities, which we all understand. But there are

         23  a number of alternatives to downzoning, enforcing

         24  codes, actually changing the codes, changing street

         25  regulations because parking is a big issue, getting
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          2  transportation to these areas which are

          3  overdeveloped in a way that is appropriate for the

          4  type of development which has occurred. There are

          5  any number of alternatives to the downzone,

          6  including upzoning in nearby areas, but you don't

          7  have to upzone in Staten Island. The fact is Staten

          8  Island has numerous opportunities for creating

          9  affordable housing in areas nearby if the zoning

         10  process is properly handled, in our view.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I would also just

         12  make the comment that in terms of the conflict of

         13  interest, I understand your client has filed the

         14  letter with the Council's Committee on Standards and

         15  Ethics about this issue.

         16                 MR. EMERY: Previously, yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And that

         18  Committee is going to be looking into this.

         19                 However, you know, the Community

         20  Board, the Borough President, City Planning and I

         21  personally feel that there is nothing wrong with an

         22  elected official representing his district. However,

         23  the matter will be taken up at the appropriate

         24  point.

         25                 MR. EMERY: I understand.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: With that I'll go

          3  to questions.

          4                 First on the list is Council Member

          5  Mike McMahon.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chairman.

          8                 Good morning, Mr. Emery.

          9                 Well, let me just ask you first, your

         10  client is again the Building Industry Association of

         11  Staten Island?

         12                 MR. EMERY: That's correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And until

         14  being retained by them you were never involved with

         15  this issue in any way on behalf of anyone in Staten

         16  Island or anywhere else; is that correct?

         17                 MR. EMERY: That's correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Now, the

         19  Building Industry Association, what do they do? What

         20  do they do, that organization?

         21                 MR. EMERY: They're an association of

         22  builders throughout New York City, throughout New

         23  York State, throughout the country. They represent

         24  small builders for two- and three-family homes, and

         25  single-family homes, and small apartments and
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          2  elderly complexes and other smaller structures,

          3  which they obviously have an interest in in the

          4  Staten Island area and they've been involved in

          5  building in Staten Island for a long time, and they

          6  sell to minority, they sell very often --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Really?

          8                 MR. EMERY: -- To minority buyers.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Could you

         10  name some projects for me on Staten Island that were

         11  undertaken by members of that organization that had

         12  as its purpose providing affordable housing,

         13  particularly for members of the minority community,

         14  in the last ten years?

         15                 Well, can you name me one project?

         16                 MR. EMERY: No --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: You know why,

         18  Mr. Emery? It doesn't exist.

         19                 MR. EMERY: It's by definition the

         20  case that when you have two- and three-family homes

         21  with potential rental garden apartments, they are

         22  more available to lower-income families and

         23  therefore the affect is greater on minority

         24  communities. That's by definition the case. You

         25  don't target -- if you targeted any racial group

                                                            55

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  you'd be discriminating in the actual building.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay. So,

          4  let's call it affordable housing.

          5                 MR. EMERY: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Let's say

          7  affordable housing, that would certainly be

          8  something that's more accessible to someone, a

          9  minority who therefore assuming has less income

         10  because they're minority. It seemed to be that in

         11  your testimony.

         12                 MR. EMERY: That's correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Can you tell

         14  me what affordable housing, subsidized housing,

         15  low-income housing that any of the members of the

         16  organization built the last ten years on Staten

         17  Island?

         18                 MR. EMERY: It's not affordable in the

         19  sense of subsidized. It's affordable --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Either/or. Go

         21  with either/or.

         22                 MR. EMERY: It's affordable in that

         23  the market is lower for these houses than the

         24  single-family dwellings which will be on the market

         25  as a result of the downzoning. It's as simple as
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          2  that. It's the market. It's not subsidized housing.

          3  Subsidized housing may be one answer in other areas

          4  to allow for downzoning of this type. If the City

          5  followed through in Staten Island as it is elsewhere

          6  with providing affordable housing in the same areas

          7  that are now 90 percent white in Southern Staten

          8  Island, we may see a situation where this downzoning

          9  could be justified and would be supportable. But

         10  that's not the case here. The City has not done

         11  that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Your clients

         13  have filed an ethical violation letter against a

         14  colleague of ours saying that, you know, because of

         15  who he is or what he's done, he doesn't have

         16  standing to do this. Yet, your clients have hired

         17  you, your clients who have never been involved in

         18  any building any affordable housing on Staten

         19  Island, they build for profit, it's profit-driven.

         20  They have hired you because they are concerned about

         21  they're going to make less profit on Staten Island.

         22  Their concern for affordable housing -- I'm from

         23  Staten Island, I've lived there all my life, I've

         24  seen what's happened to my community because of

         25  profit-driven motivations, because of builders
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          2  maximizing every loophole possible, they've turned

          3  what was a very nice community into a community

          4  that's on the brink of falling into an abyss of

          5  traffic, overcrowded schools, hospital care that is

          6  not there.

          7                 In fact, I would think that if your

          8  concern is so sincere about those who you've spoken

          9  on behalf of, you should be in a lawsuit saying why

         10  don't the people of Staten Island have health care,

         11  why don't they have school? Why don't they have

         12  roads? But you're here now representing a for-profit

         13  organization, solely a for-profit organization, that

         14  is complaining that it may make less profit, and

         15  you're doing it under the guise of, quote,

         16  affordable housing. I find that, if it's not

         17  ethically offensive, I certainly find it morally

         18  offensive, more offensive than the fact that a

         19  Councilman is trying to protect this community by

         20  filing an application.

         21                 Let's talk about the conflict of

         22  interest.

         23                 MR. EMERY: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: You said that

         25  under your reading of the Charter that two-thirds of

                                                            58

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  this Land Use Committee, the full Committee, can

          3  file an application.

          4                 MR. EMERY: The Land Use Committee,

          5  that's correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: The members

          7  of the Committee.

          8                 MR. EMERY: Right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: How is that

         10  not a conflict of interest, as you've defined it,

         11  when it would be for one member to file an

         12  application?

         13                 Two-thirds of the Committee would

         14  have to vote on that application. So, if two-thirds

         15  of us got together and filed an application,

         16  wouldn't that be more violative of a common sense

         17  conflict of interest than one member filing it?

         18                 And couldn't Council Member Lanza

         19  just abstain in voting on it and do away with any

         20  type of conflict of interest?

         21                 MR. EMERY: Let me answer both your

         22  proposed questions.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Please.

         24                 MR. EMERY: First of all, with respect

         25  to the second question, in the wisdom of the Charter
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          2  Revision Commission, the two-thirds view is that it

          3  represents more than one particular area, more than

          4  one particular Councilman answering to his

          5  particular constituency with respect to sponsoring.

          6  That's obviously what they were attempting to avoid.

          7  They were attempting to get a broader based view for

          8  any proposals for zoning in any one district, unless

          9  there is people in the district separately who

         10  independently are not members of the very body

         11  that's passing on it who are seeking to get it back.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Couldn't

         13  Council Member Lanza have just gone out to

         14  two-thirds of the Committee and said please join me

         15  in co-sponsorship of this?

         16                 MR. EMERY: Absolutely he could have,

         17  but he didn't.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And that

         19  would have obviated any -- so, the notion of a

         20  conflict of interest is illusory at best?

         21                 MR. EMERY: I don't agree with that

         22  because of the individual nature of the support.

         23                 But that's for a judge to decide, not

         24  for me to decide.

         25                 It's my view that he specifically is
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          2  not included within Section 201 and therefore, and

          3  that was there for a reason, it was perfectly

          4  obvious that 201 could have included an individual

          5  Councilperson.

          6                 With respect to your other point

          7  about being offended, the simple fact is the federal

          8  Fair Housing Act makes it very clear that builders

          9  have standing to sue when they are not permitted,

         10  for profit reasons or otherwise, to sue -- to sell

         11  housing to groups that are minorities who can afford

         12  it and who want to move, and that's what happens in

         13  downzonings of this nature.

         14                 Now I just think this is the

         15  beginning of this controversy, quite frankly. I

         16  think this is a matter that is just going to become

         17  known, there are no minority groups to oppose this

         18  in those other Staten Island areas, but when the

         19  minority groups who want to move to those areas get

         20  an understanding of what has occurred here with

         21  these downzonings, I think this is potentially, and

         22  this is really what I want to avoid and why I'm

         23  involved, potentially a very divisive issue.

         24                 This is an area where we should be

         25  negotiating, thoroughly going back and looking at
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          2  exactly the concerns we have, which I take are

          3  totally valid about preserving the neighborhoods,

          4  overcrowding, the deterioration of these traditional

          5  neighborhoods and one can preserve these

          6  neighborhoods with good planning, if it is done in

          7  not the heavy handed way that downzoning requires,

          8  if it is done with balance, if it is done with

          9  codes, if it is done more carefully, and it does not

         10  appear to be and have the effect of being a measure

         11  to preserve a homogenous white neighborhood. That's

         12  exactly what my point is here.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Just one last

         14  point.

         15                 MR. EMERY: Sure.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I represent

         17  the northern shore of Staten Island, which is --

         18                 MR. EMERY: Mixed.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: -- As diverse

         20  as any place --

         21                 MR. EMERY: I totally agree with you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: -- Within the

         23  City of New York. In fact, it's more than 50 percent

         24  minority.

         25                 MR. EMERY: I agree.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I can tell

          3  you, as a person who lives there and works every

          4  day, and works very hard with the minority

          5  community, they are as upset and concerned about

          6  overdevelopment and overcrowding, whether it's on

          7  the south shore, the mid-island or the north shore,

          8  because you know why? Their kids have to go to

          9  crowded schools.

         10                 When they go to the hospital, they

         11  have to wait 18 hours to be seen in the emergency

         12  room. They don't have access to cars, and therefore

         13  they have to use a mass transportation system that

         14  doesn't exist.

         15                 So, it's offensive for builders for

         16  profit to come into court and say that they are

         17  doing, through you to say that they are doing it to

         18  protect the rights of the minority people from

         19  Staten Island. Because you know why? Whether this is

         20  a two-family or a one-family, they can't afford

         21  those houses anyway. And the problem is that they

         22  can't get to school, their schools are overcrowded.

         23  They are in my office concerned, the leaders of the

         24  minority community, African, Hispanic, Asian, all

         25  others, are just as concerned about this issue as
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          2  the "homogeneous white people," as you say it, and

          3  let the record reflect that I use quotes as you say

          4  that. And that to me, although may be justified

          5  under the Fair Housing Act law and subsequent case

          6  law, whether it's allowable in front of this

          7  committee, as someone who has worked on this issue

          8  for so long, and seen it through the eyes of those

          9  who are affected on the other side of it, then what

         10  you're doing is you're not seeking a fair outcome

         11  here, and you should know that because the

         12  downzoning is supported by, and you saw it, by the

         13  folks in Queens, that it is their quality of life

         14  that we fight for as well.

         15                 MR. EMERY: And it may be perfectly

         16  appropriate that targeted and smart downzoning is

         17  right for the northern part of Staten Island and

         18  wouldn't present a problem at all. We're not here

         19  talking about the northern end of Staten Island,

         20  we're talking here about the effect on minority

         21  groups moving into southern Staten Island, and the

         22  reality is, is that they're not taking their fair

         23  share, if they're downzoning to protect these

         24  communities in the way that you're describing,

         25  without taking on the responsibility of providing
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          2  affordable housing. And when I say affordable, I

          3  don't mean subsidized, housing in south Staten

          4  Island.

          5                 So, I disagree with you because I

          6  think your emphasis is on a preservation of a

          7  community --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: No, Mr.

          9  Emery. Come with me to another Committee meeting

         10  with HPD and NYCHA is there and we're talking about

         11  other related issues. We are fighting just as hard

         12  to create affordable housing on Staten Island.

         13                 MR. EMERY: I totally agree with you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: But this will

         15  not do it. Your legislative action here and your

         16  subsequent legal action will in no way accomplish

         17  that. Why don't you and your client set up a

         18  non-for-profit organization and help us build some

         19  affordable housing on Staten Island and not come

         20  here on these profit-driven cases and say that

         21  you're doing it to protect affordable housing,

         22  because that is disingenuous at best.

         23                 MR. EMERY: It's not disingenuous at

         24  all. I've been very straightforward with you. I've

         25  been very straightforward with you about who I
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          2  represent and what's behind it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: He wasn't asking

          4  the question in that respect.

          5                 MR. EMERY: Okay.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          7  Oddo.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chairman.

         10                 Mr. Chairman, I am just a blue collar

         11  kid from Staten Island, who barely scraped through

         12  law school, so the notion of me challenging or

         13  lecturing Mr. Emery on any constitutional matters is

         14  sort of tantamount to Ron Slaboda giving Willy Mayes

         15  batting tips. So, I'm not going to do that, and,

         16  frankly, I don't think I have to because the notion

         17  that the Building Industry Association is interested

         18  in the rights of minorities is an absolute joke. It

         19  is patently laughable.

         20                 And I tip my hat to my colleague Mike

         21  McMahon, for demonstrating a great deal of patience

         22  and self-control.

         23                 To couch this issue in terms of race,

         24  to mask greed in terms of race, makes me want to

         25  vomit.
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          2                 This is an industry that had decades

          3  to run amuck on Staten Island, and run amuck it did.

          4                 And Mr. Emery, I have a lot of

          5  respect for you. Your legal mind is way brighter

          6  than mine, but I think your presence here

          7  demonstrates the level of desperation that your

          8  client has. And we expected a tough fight, Mike,

          9  Andrew and I, we're ready for a tough fight. You

         10  bring the fight on, you bring it on fairly, you

         11  bring it on unfairly, you do your best for your

         12  client, we're going to do the best for our clients

         13  and the people of Staten Island.

         14                 I think we're morally, ethically and

         15  legally standing on firm ground, so I welcome the

         16  challenge.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         18  Quinn.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         20                 Just a couple of questions on your

         21  testimony.

         22                 The issue of whether or not a

         23  rezoning and the individual or individuals, or

         24  group, or whatever, that brought it forward, that

         25  and whether they have standing, that's a

                                                            67

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  determination made by the City Planning Commission

          3  in this process, correct?

          4                 MR. EMERY: You're talking about

          5  Councilman Lanza's standing to sponsor this

          6  amendment?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Well, I was

          8  talking in the abstract. Just generally in the

          9  process but relative to this process would be

         10  Council Member Lanza. But just generally in the

         11  process of Land Use, that is a determination made by

         12  the City Planning Commission.

         13                 MR. EMERY: Well, I take it they have

         14  the initial determination. You have a determination,

         15  and ultimately, if necessary, a court has a

         16  determination.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I think, with

         18  all due respect, as somebody who didn't even

         19  struggle through law school and had no belief ever

         20  that she would have gotten in or made it through, I

         21  will correct you, only having asked staff and gotten

         22  the definitive answer from them, that you're

         23  incorrect. That the determination -- and in the

         24  ULURP process, as you well know, different entities

         25  have different roles and different determinations
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          2  and different things they consider at different

          3  moments. And the City Planning Commission is the

          4  entity that decides whether or not the people or

          5  person or a group bringing a zoning proposal forward

          6  has standing.

          7                 So, the question of whether or not

          8  Council Member Lanza has standing or is in conflict,

          9  is actually not a matter before us. It's a matter

         10  that was determined by the City Planning Commission

         11  and sent to us in the affirmative, that he did meet

         12  their threshold.

         13                 So, I just wanted the record to

         14  reflect that that's not something that, as I

         15  understand it from staff, is to be considered by us

         16  today, the entity who makes that decision has said

         17  that he does, we have gotten their recommendation,

         18  and I think if we're going to start disregarding

         19  City Planning's recommendations of who does or does

         20  not have standing, we are going to create a

         21  precedent that will be incredibly problematic as we

         22  look at future upzonings, downzonings and rezonings.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 MR. EMERY: Just one very quick point

         25  on that point.
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          2                 Obviously the City Council has the

          3  obligation to uphold the Charter, and the Charter is

          4  Section 201, and that specifies who may support

          5  these, and the ultimate repository of that authority

          6  is you and the courts, it's not City Planning, in my

          7  view.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: That's an

          9  incorrect view, because --

         10                 MR. EMERY: All right. Well, we

         11  differ.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: With all due

         13  respect, you didn't actually even know that City

         14  Planning was the one who had the ultimate power to

         15  make that determination. Well, because you said a

         16  second ago that you said it was also relevant to our

         17  powers.

         18                 So, I would ask you to go back and

         19  reflect on that because they are the ones who the

         20  Charter gives that power to, and they send to us the

         21  question of whether someone does or doesn't have

         22  standing.

         23                 If they don't have standing, they

         24  don't send it to us. It gets sent to us because a

         25  whole bunch of different things were determined in
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          2  the affirmative, one of which is that the person or

          3  people or group that brought it, has standing.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I would also add

          6  before we go onto the next speaker that it's in the

          7  Charter that any individual in New York City can

          8  bring an action, a rezoning action, taxpayer is the

          9  actual word that's used.

         10                 And I also want to make a

         11  clarification that I understand --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Would that

         13  then determine whether or not Council Member Lanza

         14  pays his taxes?

         15                 I've heard otherwise.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You bring up

         17  these interesting questions.

         18                 That the two-thirds vote of the Land

         19  Use Committee is just for text changes. Just for

         20  text changes.

         21                 Let's go on to the next speaker.

         22  Mark.

         23                 MR. LEVINE: Thank you, Chair Avella,

         24  Chair Katz, who is, I believe, out of the room, and

         25  thank you to all of the members of the Committee for
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          2  allowing me to speak.

          3                 My name is Mark Levine and I'm

          4  speaking today on behalf of New Yorkers for Fair

          5  Representation. We're known as NYFAIR. We're a

          6  non-profit organization, founded in 2003, with a

          7  mission of fighting anti-minority gerrymandering and

          8  other impediments to equitable presentation, on

          9  promoting voter education, and on increasing voter

         10  registration.

         11                 You have a full copy of my remarks.

         12  I'm going to keep it very brief, and just hit one

         13  point which I haven't heard discussed so far today.

         14                 Like all the voices I've heard today,

         15  I agree that over development in Staten Island is

         16  undoubtedly an issue that deserves our attention.

         17  But these zoning proposals will affect much more

         18  than just lot sizes and set-backs. They will also

         19  impact demographics and therefore politics in the

         20  make-up of southern Staten Island.

         21                 Of greatest concern to us at NYFAIR,

         22  these changes must be viewed in the context of a

         23  broader strategy across New York State to preserve

         24  public and legislative districts in the face of

         25  shifting demographics.
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          2                 Staten Island is changing. The

          3  numbers of minorities and immigrants are steadily

          4  rising, and increasing, they, along with working

          5  class families of all colors, are moving south of

          6  Highway 278.

          7                 This has significant political

          8  implications, which I believe are an unmistakable

          9  subtext to the proposed zoning changes.

         10                 Today there are more registered

         11  democrats on Staten Island than republicans. Yet,

         12  republicans hold two out of the three Council seats.

         13  The shift of more minorities and working class

         14  families to southern Staten Island thus threatens to

         15  upset this delicate balance.

         16                 Should the borough continue to trend

         17  democratic, it could also lead to one of the State

         18  legislative seats changing hands. A shift that would

         19  reverberate all the way up to Albany where our State

         20  government remains so closely divided between the

         21  two parties.

         22                 We cannot ignore this subtext when

         23  judging the proposed zoning changes, which would

         24  undoubtedly serve to slow or even reverse current

         25  demographic trends in southern Staten Island,
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          2  changes that would be bad for republicans.

          3                 These proposed zoning changes have as

          4  much to do with policy as they do with neighborhood

          5  character.

          6                 Keeping renters and working class

          7  homeowners out of southern Staten Island would help

          8  us show the area remains not just overly white but

          9  heavily republican. This plays directly into the

         10  republican strategy of using demographics and

         11  district lines to preserve their party seats in the

         12  face of a dwindling voter base.

         13                 For these reasons, we need to put

         14  Councilman Lanza's proposals on hold to allow for a

         15  prompt review and careful dialogue, giving Staten

         16  Island stakeholders the time to create a plan that

         17  will handle zoning in a way that not only serves the

         18  interest of the borough's wealthiest but reduces

         19  undue harm to all residents.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: First of all, we

         22  have copies of your testimony. It says testimony of

         23  Mark Levine for New Yorkers for Fair Representation.

         24  Is that an organization? Or you just made that title

         25  up?
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          2                 MR. LEVINE: No, sir. We are a

          3  501(c)(3) non-profit. We were incorporated in 2003.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay. And where

          5  are you based?

          6                 MR. LEVINE: The office is near Union

          7  Square. We're a statewide advocacy organization.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: What other issues

          9  have you lobbied on behalf of?

         10                 MR. LEVINE: We worked to fight the

         11  redistricting of the State Senate after the last

         12  census on grounds that have excluded minority

         13  representation.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I know some of my

         15  colleagues want to have some comments.

         16                 Let me just say one thing, and I'm

         17  debating how to say this myself. Very carefully.

         18                 For the most part, I rarely comment

         19  on people making testimony. I always, as Chair,

         20  listen, try and take people's concerns into account.

         21  There had been one or two rare occasions where

         22  people have either gone too far or presented

         23  misinformation, inaccurate information, or sometimes

         24  attack a respective Council member unfairly.

         25                 So, I say, I really commented very
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          2  infrequently. I mean, this is an opportunity where I

          3  have to comment. And regardless of the legal

          4  implications later on, the testimony from these two

          5  individuals I find absolutely ridiculous. It is

          6  offensive to me as somebody who has been involved

          7  with my colleagues of doing the rezonings in this

          8  City that somehow one particular community, because

          9  they want to preserve their quality of life, is

         10  somehow violating federal law, or in some case part

         11  of some republican conspiracy.

         12                 This is ridiculous testimony to say

         13  the least, and it is an embarrassment to all the

         14  people who come before this Council and give

         15  testimony on legitimate issues.

         16                 I also find it offensive that a

         17  Council member gets personally attacked for doing

         18  his job, for in effect responding to the issues in

         19  his district, and how he's being called into

         20  question. Shame on you.

         21                 And I know I'm probably going too

         22  far, but you know something? It has to be said

         23  because this is ridiculous. This is absolutely

         24  ridiculous. And if it was only occurring in Staten

         25  Island, maybe you could make these arguments.

                                                            76

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 It is occurring in every neighborhood

          3  in this City because the citizens of this City are

          4  standing up and demanding action by this

          5  Administration, by this Council and their elected

          6  officials.

          7                 I made mention before of Cambria

          8  Heights, I made mention of Pelham Gardens, and East

          9  Flushing. These communities are racially mixed,

         10  ethically diverse, and they're asking for these

         11  downzonings. Why? Because as Council Member McMahon

         12  said, because the overcrowding, the traffic. The

         13  shear reason people are living in this City is

         14  eroding. The quality of life isn't there anymore.

         15  And to suggest that people can't change the zoning,

         16  or the City can't change, or an individual member

         17  can't change it, is offensive. It really is

         18  ridiculous.

         19                 I am not asking for a response. This

         20  is my commentary. I've listened to both of your

         21  commentary, I find it absurd in the extreme. And I'm

         22  probably violating Council's rules for going on this

         23  long, but I couldn't sit here any longer either.

         24                 Council Member Oddo.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Chairman. I made a baseball reference earlier. Let

          3  me make a tennis reference, and I'll use the words

          4  of the great tennis pro John Macaro. Mark, you can't

          5  be serious. You can't be serious. A broader strategy

          6  of republicans -- do you think I met with Joe Bruno?

          7  That's why we're doing downzonings? Yes, at that

          8  meeting was Jimmy Oddo, Andy Lanza, Joe Bruno, the

          9  tooth fairy, Captain Crunch, we had a grand old

         10  time.

         11                 This is insane. Do you really think

         12  every day Andy and Mike and I get our doors knocked

         13  off and fight and struggle and actually have

         14  demonstrated the ideals of politics and that we've

         15  transcended partisanship and worked together like

         16  this. Do you really think that I'm doing that to

         17  keep my district solidly republican? Is that what

         18  you think? Do you think my district is solidly

         19  republican right now? It's not. It was three to two

         20  in favor of democrats, and John Fusco was there.

         21  There are more democrats in my district than

         22  republicans. Get a clue, my friend. Get a clue.

         23                 MR. LEVINE: Is that a question?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: No.

         25                 MR. LEVINE: No, I didn't think so.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Mr. Levine,

          3  who asked you to come testify here today?

          4                 MR. LEVINE: Fellow board members of

          5  New Yorkers for Fair Representation.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And how did

          7  they become aware of this issue?

          8                 This is probably -- I co-sponsored

          9  four zoning applications in my district, which I

         10  guess could be seen based on your theory, on the

         11  Levine theory of demographics, rezoning and politics

         12  in Staten Island, I guess the downzonings in my

         13  district would have been pro-republican. In fact,

         14  based on your theory, we would have been diluting

         15  the power of the last bastion of democratic party in

         16  my district, and how come you didn't testify then?

         17                 In fact, some have been voted on

         18  since your organization came into being.

         19                 MR. LEVINE: I wasn't aware of those

         20  zonings.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Well, who

         22  made your organization aware of these zonings? Did

         23  someone from the Building Industry Association

         24  contract your organization?

         25                 MR. LEVINE: No. Never heard of them
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          2  before actually.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Today is the

          4  first time you've heard of them?

          5                 And all of the political analysis of

          6  Staten Island as you've presented it here, where did

          7  that information come from?

          8                 MR. LEVINE: Well, generally speaking

          9  we're an organization which is focused on minority

         10  representation and City and State Legislature, so

         11  this sort of comes out of our pool of research

         12  today.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: But I

         14  certainly don't remember hearing from any of your

         15  organizations doing the redistricting process here

         16  in this body.

         17                 MR. LEVINE: Til now we focused mostly

         18  on statewide, state/senate redistricting.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Well, I think

         20  it's time to end, but I'll certainly associate

         21  myself with the comments of my colleagues. This is

         22  an outrageous presentation.

         23                 Let me ask you this: Your

         24  organization, where do you derive your funds to run

         25  your organization?
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          2                 MR. LEVINE: I'm not involved in the

          3  fundraising. We're a 501(C)(3) non-profit, and so I

          4  presume its individuals and foundations, but I could

          5  get back to you on that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Well, do you

          7  work for them full-time?

          8                 MR. LEVINE: I'm a volunteer.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: You're a

         10  volunteer.

         11                 Is there an Executive Director?

         12                 MR. LEVINE: We're a no-paid staff. We

         13  have a consultant that handles administrative

         14  matters.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Mr. Chairman,

         16  I agree with your comments and Council Member

         17  Oddo's, and I think the record is clear as the

         18  position we feel.

         19                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm sure we would

         21  all like even more to say, but I think we will leave

         22  it at that.

         23                 This meeting is recessed until

         24  tomorrow at 9:45.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 11:40 a.m.)
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